ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
HOUSE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COVM TTEE
March 6, 2008
8:11 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Bob Roses, Vice Chair
Representati ve Kyl e Johansen
Representative Crai g Johnson
Representati ve Andrea Dol
Representati ve Max G uenberg

VEMBERS ABSENT

Representative Bob Lynn, Chair
Represent ati ve John Coghi l

COWM TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 353
"An Act relating to the blocking of certain Internet sites at
public libraries and to library assistance grants."”

- HEARD AND HELD

HOUSE CONCURRENT RESCLUTI ON NO. 20
Encouraging the installation of fire sprinkler systenms in
resi dences.

- MOVED CSHCR 20( STA) OQUT OF COW TTEE
HOUSE Bl LL NO. 406
"An Act relating to a requirenment for conpetitive bidding on
contracts for the preparation of election ballots.”

- HEARD AND HELD
HOUSE Bl LL NO. 396
“"An Act relating to and increasing the anount of the 2008
per mmnent fund dividend; and providing for an effective date."

- SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD

HOUSE Bl LL NO. 261
"An Act establishing a clean elections programin the state.”

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -1- March 6, 2008



- SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 353

SHORT TI TLE: PUBLI C LI BRARY | NTERNET FI LTERS
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) KELLER

02/ 06/ 08 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 06/ 08 (H) STA, FIN

02/ 28/ 08 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

02/ 28/ 08 (H) Heard & Hel d

02/ 28/ 08 (H) M NUTE( STA)

03/ 04/ 08 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

03/ 04/ 08 (H) Heard & Hel d

03/ 04/ 08 (H) M NUTE( STA)

03/ 06/ 08 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

Bl LL: HCR 20
SHORT TI TLE: RESI DENTI AL FI RE SPRI NKLER SYSTEMS
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) SEATON

01/ 31/ 08 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
01/31/08 (H L&C, STA

02/ 27/ 08 (H) L&C AT 3: 00 PM CAPI TOL 17
02/ 27/ 08 (H Moved Qut of Conmittee

02/ 27/ 08 (H M NUTE( L&C)

02/ 29/ 08 (H L&C RPT 2DP 2NR

02/ 29/ 08 (H DP: BUCH, GATTO

02/ 29/ 08 (H) NR: GARDNER, NEUMAN

03/ 04/ 08 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106
03/ 04/ 08 (H Schedul ed But Not Heard
03/ 06/ 08 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106
BILL: HB 406

SHORT TI TLE: CONTRACTS FOR PREPARATI ON OF BALLOTS
SPONSCR(s) : REPRESENTATI VE(s) FAI RCLOUGH

02/ 19/ 08 (H) READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
02/ 19/ 08 (H) STA, FIN

03/ 04/ 08 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

03/ 04/ 08 (H) Schedul ed But Not Heard

03/ 06/ 08 (H) STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

W TNESS REG STER
REPRESENTATI VE WES KELLER
Al aska State Legislature

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 2- March 6, 2008



Juneau, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  As sponsor of HB 353, noted the change nade
in Version M

BARBARA BERG, Director

Juneau Public Libraries

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answer ed questions during the hearing on HB
353.

REPRESENTATI VE PAUL SEATON

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented HCR 20 as prine sponsor.

KELLY NI KALOLO, Assistant Fire Marshal

Division of Fire and Life Safety

Central Ofice

Departnment of Public Safety (DPS)

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HCR 20.

ERNI E M SEW CZ, Fire Marshal

Fai r banks Fire Departnment

Fai r banks, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HCR 20.

GREY M TCHELL, Director

Labor Standards and Safety

Depart ment of Labor and Workf orce Devel opnent

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Ofered information during the hearing on
HCR 20.

RENEE LI MOGE, St af f

Representative Anna Faircl ough

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TION  STATEMENT: Introduced HB 406 on behalf of
Represent ati ve Faircl ough, primnme sponsor.

KERRY NOBLI N

Peni nsul a Printing

Sol dot na, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 406.

PATRI CK FOSTER

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 3- March 6, 2008



A. T. Publishing and Printing
Anchor age, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 406.

GAIL FENUM Al, Director

Central Ofice

D vi sion of Elections

O fice of the Lieutenant Governor

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Expl ained how HB 406 would inpact the
di vi sion's busi ness practices.

VERN JONES, Chief Procurenent O ficer

Central Ofice

D vi sion of General Services

Department of Adm nistration

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answer ed questions during the hearing on HB
406.

JASON HOOLEY, Special Assistant/Legislature

O fice of the Lieutenant Governor

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified regarding the practical aspects
of HB 406.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

VICE CHAIR BOB ROSES called the House State Affairs Standing
Conmittee neeting to order at 8:10:59 AM Representati ves
Johansen, Johnson, Guenberg, Doll, and Roses were present at
the call to order.

8:12:13 AM

HB 353- PUBLI C LI BRARY | NTERNET FI LTERS

VI CE CHAI R ROSES announced that the first order of business was
HOUSE BILL NO 353, "An Act relating to the blocking of certain

Internet sites at public libraries and to library assistance
grants."
8:12:35 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noved to adopt the proposed commttee
substitute (CS), Version 25-LS1356\M Bannister, 3/5/08, as a

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -4- March 6, 2008



work draft. There being no objection, Version M was before the
conmittee.

8:13:38 AM
REPRESENTATI VE WES KELLER, Al aska State Legislature, as sponsor

of HB 353, said the change nade in Version M was the exenption
of the university libraries from the proposed required Internet

filters. He said he supports Version M In response to a
request for information pertaining to the cost of the filtering
system made by Representative Doll at the last bill hearing, he

said the commssioner of the Departnent of Admnistration
[ Annette Kreitzer] has commtted to researching cost comparisons
and looking into the possibility of a group license, and has
said she would send soneone to testify before the next conmittee

of referral. In response to a question from Vice Chair Roses,
he said Ms. Kreitzer did not indicate how long it would take to
conpile that information; however, he guaranteed that the
informati on would acconmpany the bill into the next commttee of
referral

8:16: 55 AM

BARBARA BERG Director, Juneau Public Libraries, addressed a
m sconception she heard at a prior bill hearing that if an
application was not made for the federal E-rate, then the state
woul d have to pick up the cost. She explained that the federa
E-rate is a reinbursenent and discount program A library

applies for the discount, based on the services it is receiving,
and the Internet service provider (I1SP) or telecomunications
provider is the one that gets the paynent from the federal

gover nment . The 1SP or telecomruni cations provider passes that
on to the library either in the formof a discounted bill or by
requiring the library to apply in July after the end of the
fiscal year, and not reinbursing the library until fall. She

said there really is not a way that E-rate funding can ever
di spl ace state budgeted funding, because the state budgeted
funding is sonething for which libraries can plan in their
budgets and use for operations. M. Berg said when she prepares
her budget, she budgets for the full telephone cost, as if the
E-rate did not exist, in order to guarantee bills will be paid
when they arrive.

8:18: 25 AM

VB. BERG said there had also been a statenent made that
libraries that did not filter the Internet were out of

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 5- March 6, 2008



conpliance with CIPA.  She stated that the provision in the FCC
ruling that inplemented CIPA was that if Ilibraries did not
accept funding for Internet service, they were not obligated to
filter under CIPA;, they would not be out of conpliance wth
Cl PA, because ClPA would not apply to them She said, "It was a
community decision that we not filter.”" She said that decision
comes about for Ilibraries, not just because of the cost, but
al so because the E-rate program is a conplicated program for
which to apply and to which to conply. She added, "It nmakes

filing your incone taxes look like a walk in the park." She
said she has one |ibrarian who spends weeks every year trying to
conply with the telecomunications application process. She
stated that many of the small libraries operating only on the

state grant have no technical staff and don't have the ability
to spend weeks doing a total of [four] filings with the federa

governnent annually in order to get this noney. Furt her nor e,
the level of conplication rises "when you go for the Internet
funding." She offered further details. She concl uded:

M5. BERG said at sonme point the discount the library gets is not

worth the staff hours. She said the Juneau Public Library
increased its Internet bandwidth |last year and finds that the
di scounts that Alaska Comunications Systens, Inc. (ACS) and
CGeneral Commruni cations Incorporated provide are greater than the
di scount the library would receive from the federal program
She concluded, "So, as a responsible admnistrator, | cannot

waste my city's noney doing sonething that has no return, and I
think a lot of libraries are in that sane situation.”

8:21: 07 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG urged nenbers to look at M. Berg's
handout . He said he is troubled by [the information on the
handout] and urged "the commttee or sone other to take up these
subj ects that you nentioned."

M5. BERG in response to a renmark from Representative G uenberg,
said she does not renenber what the authorizing |egislation for
the E-rate subsidies is, but she would provide that information
| ater. She continued:

The wuniversal service fund was set up - we all pay
into it when we pay our telephone bills. And ... for
years they had an offset for rural areas for
t el ecommuni cations, for telephone connections, so that
rural areas could get on telephone, and it was
extended under the wuniversal service fund to cover

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 6- March 6, 2008



| nternet connection, as well, for schools and public
libraries. And the wuniversities have never been
covered by this funding.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked if [SPs and teleconmunication
conpanies are required under federal |aw to pass on the
di scounted rate to libraries.

M5. BERG answered, "If they receive the paynent wunder the
uni versal service fund, they are obligated to reinburse the
di scounted portion of the bill."

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked, "Mist they do that immediately,
or can they [nmake] significantly delays in receiving that fund?"

M5. BERG answered, "They ~can nmake significant delays in
receiving it. In fact, one year ... there was a dispute in
Congress as to whether they were going to authorize the funding
or not, and our application process was held up, and it was
unclear as to how nuch would be funded or if it would be
funded. "

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG cited a sentence from M. Berg's
handout , which read: "In all-volunteer Ilibraries, t he
adm ni strative burden of complying with E-rate and CI PA can nake
it inpossible to apply for these funds." He asked, "So, really,
it is neaningless in sonme cases, and in that case the conpanies
keep this extra noney they receive, right?"

M5. BERG responded that because she does not wunderstand the
vendor's side of the operation, she probably should not nake a

st at enent . However, she surm sed that "they have to go through
an application and justification process to show who they're
giving a discount to." She said Representative G uenberg would

have to ask soneone from ACS or GCIl "how it works on their end."

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG reiterated his concern regarding M.
Berg's witten information.

8:24:23 AM

REPRESENTATI VE DOLL asked how | ocal control is neasured and put
into effect.

M5. BERG replied that Juneau is unique, in that it has no fornal

library board, but instead is authorized in the city charter;
therefore, Ms. Berg said, she answers to the city manager. She

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -7- March 6, 2008



said she discusses mjor decisions, such as whether or not to
filter the Internet, with the Friends of the Juneau Library;
however, that board is nore of an informal advisory board than a
governing board, and its nenbership is drawn from "anybody who's
interested in the libraries.” If there are conplaints or
problens, the library manager hears about them and they are
heard before the Juneau Assenbly.

8:26: 00 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG of fered his understanding that there is
a docunment by the Brennan Center for Justice at New York
Uni versity School of Law which presents both sides of the issue
related to HB 353.

8:26:41 AM

VI CE CHAI R ROSES announced that HB 353 was heard and hel d.

HCR 20- RESI DENTI AL FI RE SPRI NKLER SYSTEMS

8:27: 06 AM

VI CE CHAIR ROSES announced that the next order of business was
HOUSE CONCURRENT RESOLUTI ON NO. 20, Encouraging the installation
of fire sprinkler systens in residences.

8:27:31 AM

REPRESENTATI VE PAUL SEATON, Al aska State Legislature, presented
HCR 20 as prinme sponsor. He said each year in Honer [the fire
departnment] holds training sessions for the comunity to teach
fire safety. Representati ve Seaton described the experience he
had at one of the training sessions, during which he and others
stood in a trailer to witness a fire purposely started at the
other end of the trailer and doused by an automatic residentia
sprinkl er system He said he was inpressed by the
denonstration, because while a commercial sprinkler system wll
not be set off before reaching 200-250 degrees Fahrenheit, the
residential sprinkler system will activate at 135-155 degrees
Fahr enhei t. Furthernore, the residential sprinkler sends out
mst, so it uses nmuch | ess water than the commercial sprinklers.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said the availability of residential
sprinklers gives Al askans a great opportunity to protect against
fire-related | oss. He said sprinklers can be retrofitted in
homes. He related that currently there are incentives avail able

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 8- March 6, 2008



for people who put sprinkler systenms in their hones when they
are built; however, those systens require the national standard
of one-inch pipe and a coverage of 100 percent of the structure.
Representative Seaton reported that alnost all the fires that
occur in Alaska in non-snoking households take place near the
cooking area, fireplace, or boiler/furnace. He indicated that a
sprinkler head can cover a 12-foot radius. He stated that the
purpose of HCR 20 is to encourage the governnent and insurance
conpanies to give a credit on honeowners' insurance for Al askans
who retrofit sprinklers in their honmes to cover "the vul nerable
parts of their honme where nost of the fires occur.”

8:32: 53 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noted that "platinum gold, and silver
stars" are listed on page 1, line 14, [referring to the "various
| evel s of sprinkler coverage"]. He asked if Representative

Seaton would |ike an anmendnent to add the bronze star nentioned
in a handout in the conmttee packet.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON sai d the anmendnent is not necessary.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG stated his support of the resolution
He asked the sponsor if he would |ike | anguage added to the bill
which would require a progress report related to the fire
marshal 's conpliance with the resolution, perhaps to be given
after a year or two.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON answered that he is confortable with the
resol ution wi thout a report requirenent.

8:34:39 AM

[Followng is a video from YouTube, called, "Residential
sprinkl ers denonstration."]

8:38:29 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON indicated that the residential sprinkler
can be nounted directly onto overhead water |ine pipes, such as
are found in furnace roons.

8:39: 08 AM

[Followng is a video from YouTube, entitled, "Fresno Fire PSA -
Fire Sprinkler."]

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -9- March 6, 2008



8:40: 21 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noted that included in the comittee
packet is: a draft plan produced by the fire marshal in 2006,
and a report showi ng that although [snoke detectors] are very
inportant, fire sprinklers are actually what save |ives. He
noted that there were representatives from various fire
departnents available to testify, as well as the state fire
mar shal . He said the Departnent of Labor "does not even see a
fiscal note attached wth this,"” because any of t he
certifications necessary are already in place.

8:42:14 AM

KELLY N KALOLO, Assistant Fire WMarshal, Division of Fire and
Life Safety, Central Ofice, Departnent of Public Safety (DPS),

reported t hat accordi ng to t he Uni ted St at es Fire
Adm ni strati on, in 2005, t he Uni ted St at es suf fered
approximately 396,000 residential fires, which resulted in about
3, 055 deat hs. Those statistics, he said, do not account for
enotional |oss of |oved ones and sentinental possessions. M.
Ni kal ol 0 stated that even with [these statistics which show] an
abysmal loss of life, there is still a "substantial resistance

to requiring residential sprinklers in new construction today."
Furthernore, he indicated that there would be no way to support
such a requirenment in Al aska. He said the Departnment of Public
Safety finds the aforenentioned statistics unacceptable. He
stated, "It's incunbent upon us to value those properties that
enbrace the responsibility of their own safety and reward them
for exercising uncomon sense and farsightedness.”

MR. NI KALOLO said that as described in the proposed resol ution

the fire marshal would recognize levels of fixed fire protection
installed in single famly dwellings through a program that
would be called, "the Residential Safety Star Program” He
expl ained that the fixed protection system would be installed by
qualified installers, as permtted under 13 AAC 50.035, "or
ot herwi se approved by the manufacturer in concurrence with the
State Fire Marshal's Ofice."

MR. NI KALOLO st at ed:

W feel we need that change in culture. For too | ong
our society has rewarded victim status to people who
have fires occur in their hones. W risk firefighter
and famly nenber's lives to accidents and nornal acts
of carel essness. W reward those incidents with an

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 10- March 6, 2008



out pouring of conpassion, positive affirmtion, and

financi al assistance. Shoul dn't we reward positive
proactive outcone rather than rewarding negative
results?

MR N KALOLO said HCR 20 wuld bring forth a voluntary,
positive, individual approach to fire safety wthin Al aska's
honmes and would provide the neans to reward famlies who invest
to protect the security of their honmes by installing residential
fire sprinkler suppression systens.

8:45:27 AM

MR. N KALOLO related a story wherein about 400 honmes were built
in the North Slope Borough in the early '90s, each hone equi pped
with sprinkler heads. Since that tinme, there have been a couple
i nstances where residents there have been inebriated and fell
asl eep while snoking, and woke up "wet but alive." M. N kalolo
said, "W look at that program as being kind of the keystone of
what we're trying to acconplish here.”

8:46: 19 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN asked M. N kalolo to clarify the
nmeani ng of the |anguage on page 2, lines 11-13, which read:

BE IT RESOLVED that the Alaska State Legislature
encourages the state fire marshal to formalize the
nodel residential fire sprinkler system program as a
st at ewi de program

8:46:40 AM

MR. N KALOLO prefaced his answer by noting that he was not [in
the departnment] in '96 "when this was first put forth."
Notwi t hstanding that, he estimated that the |anguage neans that
the legislature would, outside of bill form give its blessing
for the state marshal to go forward with the program He said
t he program has no added cost or |abor requirenents. He said he

| ooks at the |language as "a nondescript statenent," because "it
doesn't direct anything, as far as program is concerned.” He
concluded, "I think it's just kind of l|ending the nane and the
power of the legislature in support of this.” In response to a

followup question from Representative Johansen, he said he
thinks the reason the fire marshal would like the legislature's
backing for a program that costs nothing is because that support
will lend greater weight and increase public awareness.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -11- March 6, 2008



8:49: 09 AM

ERNIE M SEW CZ, Fire Marshal, Fai rbanks Fire Departnent,
testified in support of HCR 20. He indicated that the public
views fires as sonething that happens to other people, and they
do not give them much thought. M. Msewicz said he is a 34-
year veteran of the fire service and has seen first hand the
devastation caused by fire, has carried children and adults from
fires who were either injured or killed, and has seen nany |ives
turned upsi de down and peopl e displaced due to fire.

MR M SEWCZ stated that people believe that the fire departnent
is there to protect them and "save the day," whereas in reality,
the fire departnments do not have the chance to win the battle
with fire. He said, "Wth the rapid change in technology in the
way that we build and furnish our hone, fire now grows

exponentially." He explained that living roons are full of
| arge quantities of flammable solids that cause fires to build
so greatly. He relayed, "Fires now are reaching a point of
flashover within less than two mnutes from the start of the
fire." M. Msewicz said great strides have been nmade toward
requiring early detection in homes, but "we still lack the neans
to have that early intervention; the nmeans to suppress these
fires.” He said fire departnents strongly believe that

residential sprinklers are the answer.

MR MSEWCZ said builders have said they would put sprinklers
in residences only if there would be an increase in the value of
t he hone. He explained that construction costs are tight, and
if the builder cannot have that extra cost of the sprinkler
system realized in the bottom line, he/she is not going to
install the sprinklers. He enphasized the need to encourage the

installation of sprinkler systenms in honmes, as well as in
commerci al buildings throughout the entire state. He said this
can be done in many ways: by changi ng buil ding codes, through

breaks in insurance rates, by increasing the value of property
in which recognized sprinkler systens exist, and by recogni zing
the full appraisal value for the life of that property rather

than just in the year in which it was installed. He said tax
breaks alone are not enough to off-set the cost of installing a
sprinkler system He nentioned the possibility of "Iowincomne
| oans. "

MR MSEWCZ stated that the Fairbanks Fire Departnent strongly
supports both the installation of residential sprinklers and HCR
20 - the proposed resolution being one of the tools in the too

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -12- March 6, 2008



box that will help pronote installation of sprinklers. He said
there are groups working to make changes to residential code
however, "there's still a lot of opposition out there." He
concl uded:

If we want to inpact the devastation caused by fires,
especially in the hone, we need to start by passing
the resolution, and we need to look ... for ways to
pronote and encourage residential sprinklers, and
maybe, at sone point, requiring them This way we can
go over there and save |ives.

8:53: 01 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG  nenti oned an initiative bei ng
considered in Fairbanks that would increase the residential
property tax exenption, which would result in a reduction in the
anount of noney that is available to fund firefighting. He
asked, "How would that sort of thing affect the ability of
people to protect their homes with fire suppression and fire
fighting fromthe local fire departnent?”

MR MSEWCZ said he is not famliar with the initiative.
Notwi t hstanding that, he said early suppression efforts reduce
the anount of tinme and effort required of the fire departnent by
the tine it arrives at the scene of a fire.

8:55:16 AM

REPRESENTATI VE DCOLL asked what the added cost would be to
install a sprinkler system in a 2,000-square-foot residence if
residential sprinklers were nmade nmandatory.

MR MSEWCZ said he has been told that retrofitting a hone
costs approximately $1.50 per square foot, while installing
sprinklers in a new hone costs roughly $.90 per square foot. He
noted that the cost equates to the expense of installing carpet
in a hone.

8:57:27 AM

REPRESENTATI VE = SEATON, in response to a question from
Representative Guenberg, said he is not aware of any other
jurisdictions that have mandatory requirenments [for residential
sprinkler systens]. He rem nded Representative G uenberg that
the program that the resolution would support is conpletely
vol untary. He pointed out the difference between retrofitting

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 13- March 6, 2008



homes conpletely and attenpting to cover 85 percent of the
ignition sources in hones, the latter of which is what the
resolution is "trying to do." He said when people talk about
mandatory requirenents, they are generally talking about
"through building codes.” Much of Al aska, he said, does not
have enforced building codes that affect houses. Since the
resolution ainms at encouraging all of Alaska to opt for
sprinkler protection, the resolution is not attenpting to effect
sonet hi ng t hrough mandat ory buil di ng codes.

8:58: 52 AM
VI CE CHAI R ROSES cl osed public testinony.
8:59: 05 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN asked if the resolution is attenpting to
convince insurance conpanies to consider deductions and offer
i ncentives.

8:59: 27 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON offered his understanding that there are
two insurance conpanies in Alaska that currently offer credits

but those <credits are based on the national, 100 percent
coverage throughout the entire hone. He said HCR 20 attenpts to
get <credits offered "for the protection from the ignition

sources that generally occur within Al aska." He referred to a
handout in the <conmttee packet that shows three «charts
depicting fire statistics in Al aska. One page, entitled,

"Applicable Fire Cause Conparison (2005-2007)," shows that in
2007, nine out of fourteen fire-related deaths were caused by
heat sources - the <cause of the five other deaths was
undet er m ned. He indicated that the resolution could have a
huge effect on Al askans, giving the incentive and ability to
homeowners to protect thenselves and their famlies in the hone.

9:00: 54 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN indicated that the resolution does
nothing nore than make a suggestion to the insurance conpany.
He asked if there are other states in which insurance conpanies
recogni ze partial coverage for "hot spot areas.”

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON responded that he is not aware of any

other states that do so. He said nost states offer incentives
through building codes, and he reiterated that there are only

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -14- March 6, 2008



"sone centralized municipalities that even require building
codes in Alaska.” He said the state fire marshal has devel oped
the pilot program and has indicated it would be finalized. He
said insurance conpanies' charges are supposed to represent
their "loss experience"; therefore, there would be a reason for
the director of insurance to be asking the insurance conpany to
consi der that.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN i ndi cated that sone people had comrent ed
on the high rates of plunbers, and he pointed out that sinply
noting the cost of the sprinklers does not include the |abor of
having them install ed. He observed that there is a zero fisca

note in the commttee packet. He said he has seen it happen in
the past where the fiscal note started out at zero, a program
was started, and in ensuing years requests were made for noney
to keep the program going. He said he is curious why [the
Department of Labor] would need to create a program and
curriculum to train licensed plunbers to "cut a pipe and have
themput a'T in there."

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON expl ai ned that a way to keep costs down is
to have a honeowner do the job hinfherself and have a plunber
certify that "the [sprinkler] heads are there.” He i ndicated
that this would give nore authenticity, which would assure the
i nsurance conpani es that the job was done correctly. He said it
may cost nore than $100 to do that certification, but in a
"normal " house, three sprinkler heads m ght be sufficient.

9:08: 04 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN said the bill sponsor has expressed that
the program and curriculum exist; therefore, he is not certain
why it is necessary that +the resolution include |anguage
regarding the creation of a program and curricul um He said he
woul d i kely offer an amendnent to del ete that |anguage.

9: 08: 55 AM

GREY M TCHELL, Director, Labor Standards and Safety, Departnent
of Labor and Wor kf or ce Devel opnent, in response to
Represent ati ve Johansen, confirned that the training curricul uns
do already exist, so the departnent would not be required to
expend effort to develop a curriculum Since the resolution is
"advisory," he said, "a plunber can get the training or not."
Those with the training will get that additional training status
noted on their already existing |license.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -15- March 6, 2008



MR MTCHELL, in response to a question from Representative
Johansen, explained that currently a plunber can instal
sprinklers with a standard plunbing |icense. He expl ai ned, "I
think what we're talking about here is an advisory where you
woul d have a training program that's separate from the standard
that a plunber could get, as an addendum or an addition to their
plunbing license, for sprinkler fitting, specifically." In
response to a followup question from Representative Johansen,
he confirnmed that there are sone training prograns that include
sprinkler systens as part of their training curriculum while
ot hers do not.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN expressed concern that another hoop is
being created for a plunber to junp through to prove he/she can

do a skill that is already part of his/her repertoire.

MR. MTCHELL responded, "I think that that’s an accurate
statenent.”

9:12:10 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG queried, "Nothing in this resolution or
what you're contenplating would require a plunber to be
certified in that manner to nake a certification that the home
has sprinklers, correct?"

MR. M TCHELL confirnmed that is correct.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG continued, "So, it's not accurate to
say that there would be this requirenment, is it? ... This
encourages you to develop the program so it would be available
to plunbers who wanted it; not that they'd be required to have

it to nake the certification. Isn't that correct?"
VR. M TCHELL answered that's «correct; it wuld not be a
requirenent. He explained, "I think the issue is there would be

this question of whether or not the plunber had received that
training in order to get whatever benefit the insurance conpany
was providing. So, although it's not required, there would be
some kind of a nechanismto show that they had had that training
or not."

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked, "If the honeowner w shed to
prove the installation of conplying sprinklers, would that

pl unber have to have had that certification, or could another
pl unber nake the certification to the homeowner to be presented

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 16- March 6, 2008



to the insurance conpany? Wuld they have to go through your
pr ogr anf?"

MR MTCHELL replied that he really does not know. He said
"All that the resolution asks us to do is to develop a training

curricul um The curriculum is already established, so, ... at
that point ... we're done. These secondary steps are kind of
"what-ifs," and since it is all advisory, | don't know exactly

how it's going to devel op.™

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG directed attention to [page 2], lines
21-22, which notes that the Department of Labor and Wbrkforce
Devel opnent would work with the state fire marshal. He

suggested that the departnent would also work with other groups,
such as uni ons.

MR MTCHELL agreed that certainly the departnent would get
i ndustry support and input on the training curriculum In
response to a followup question from Representative G uenberg,
he confirmed that the other input would come not only from
uni ons, but also fromindustry groups.

9:14:29 AM
REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked the sponsor of the proposed
resolution how he would feel about including "and other groups”

after "state fire nmarshal "

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON responded that that would be fine, since

the whole idea is to create a synergy. He suggested that
instead of just "train |licensed plunbers", the words "and
certify" could be added. He explained that the issue is not
about how to solder pipes and put in a 'T" - it's about

determ ning whether the sprinkler head is adequate to cover the
ar ea. He offered further details. He stated that if the fire
mar shal recognizes that preventing fires in the aforenentioned
limted areas is of the greatest benefit, than many |ives can be
saved in Al aska.

9:17:19 AM

REPRESENTATI VE DOLL said she can see how the resolution could
have a ripple effect, and she expressed concern that [the
resolution] is "nmuch nore than neets the eye." She said
different honmes are nmade out of different materials, for
exanpl e. There is a lot nore to the resolution than "a sinple
intent to prevent fires."

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -17- March 6, 2008



9:18:11 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN asked M. Mtchell if he has the ability
currently to exclude plunbers who do not have the required
"sticker."

MR. M TCHELL answered that the departnent's current authority
lies in statute and requires anyone working on a potable water
systemto hold a plunber's "certificate of fitness" |icense. He
said, "These systens in the residential arena are going to be
part of that potable water system So, in order to work on the
pot abl e water system they would have to have that certificate
of fitness." An exception he noted would be if a plunber is
working in a community with | ess than 2,500 people. In response
to a followup question from Representative Johansen, he said,
"I guess |I'm kind of having trouble making the tie-in with this
bill, because | don't think that the bill has anything to do
with that requirenment.” He said if someone is doing plunbing
work that is subject to the Uniform Plunbing Code because it is
part of the potable water system thus currently requiring a
certificate of fitness, that person does not need a sticker that
says he/she has had any training in sprinkler fitting or "those
ki nds of things."

9:20: 39 AM

VI CE CHAI R RCSES observed, "Wen you say they have to have the
certification; that's only if you're going to get a |license as a
certified plunber in the state. If 1I'"'m a honeowner - [|I'm
building ny owmn hone - | don't have to have a certification, and
there is no regulation by the Departnent of Labor [and Workforce
Devel opnent] that governs that. ... | do have to get a building
inspection in my nunicipality, but | don't have to have a
certification. So, you're only talking about for licensure, is
t hat correct?"

MR. M TCHELL responded that's correct.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN restated his previously expressed
concern that although the bill has no weight in law, when the
| egi slature pushes in one direction, the departnent may end up
comi ng back with requests for expenditures. He said he agrees
with the intent of the bill; however, he has a problemwth the
af orenenti oned | anguage on page 2, lines 21-24.

9:22:19 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 18- March 6, 2008



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked if lay people could also be
trai ned by the departnent.

MR. M TCHELL said he does not see any reason why the training
could not be offered to anyone who w shed it.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said he had included |icensed plunbers in
the | anguage of the resolution because in nost places building
i nspectors are not required. He said plunbers who instal
sprinkler systens currently are already licensed to do so, but
“this would allow the other plunbers that haven't been trained
in sprinkler systens to get that certification.”

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG stated that he fully supports the bil
and woul d not offer an anendnent unless the sponsor approved it.
He asked if offering certification to honeowners who w shed to
install sprinklers sinply for the purpose of wupgrading their
homes woul d be contrary to the purpose of HCR 20.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON responded no.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he would like to encourage the
average person [to upgrade his/her honme by installing sprinkler
syst ens] .

9:26: 03 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN asked M. Mtchell if the departnent
could handl e allow ng anyone to cone before it and say, "Hey, |
want to do this," and if there would be zero fiscal inpact if
t hat shoul d happen.

MR. M TCHELL responded yes. He explained the reason is that the
curriculunms already exist.

9:26: 45 AM

REPRESENTATI VE DOLL said she foresees that residential sprinkler
systens could becone nandatory at sone point in the future,
which would have trenmendous i npact on homebuilding and
I nsur ance.

The commttee took an at-ease from 9:27:49 AMto 9:30:21 AM

9:30:41 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -19- March 6, 2008



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG, in response to Vice-Chair Roses, said
the House State Affairs Standing Commttee is the last conmttee
of referral for HCR 20 before the resolution is heard by the
House Rul es Standing Comrittee.

9:33: 14 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noved Conceptual Amendnent 1, as
fol |l ows:

Page 2, line 22, followng fire marshal
Del ete ","
I nsert "and ot her groups”

Page 2, line 23:
Delete "create a programand a curriculumto”

Page 2, line 23, between "train" and "licensed":
Insert "and certify"

Page 2, line 23, between "plunbers” and "install":
I nsert "and ot hers”

REPRESENTATI VE DOLL [objected for discussion purposes].

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON, in response to Representative Doll
confirmed that the reason for deleting the reference to a
program and curriculum is that those are already in place. He
noted that since Representative G uenberg had noved Conceptua
Amendnent 1, with "and other groups"” added after "state fire
marshal ", the addition of "and others" after "licensed plunbers”
is not needed. He said "others"”™ would be certified, but the
state woul d not be getting into a training programfor them

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked Representative Seaton how he
woul d |'i ke the | anguage of Conceptual Anmendnment 1 changed.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON suggested that the | anguage shoul d read:
working with the state fire marshal and other groups
to train and certify licensed plunbers to install or

certify residential fire sprinkler systens.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG expl ai ned the purpose behind including
“and ot hers".

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 20- March 6, 2008



REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said he does not have any objection to
| eaving that |anguage in the amendnent; however, he said he
wants the legislative intent clear that "we're not talking about
a wor kf orce devel opnent progrant where training take pl ace.

9: 36: 15 AM

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG stated for the record that upon
adoption of Conceptual Amendnment 1, page 2, lines 21-24 would
read as foll ows:

FURTHER RESOLVED that the Alaska State Legislature
encourages the Departnent of Labor and Workforce
Devel opment, working with the state fire marshal and
other groups, to train and certify licensed plunbers

and others to install residential fire sprinkler
systens.
REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said, "I don't know if |I'm a honmeowner
if you're going to, quote, 'certify' nme, but | think the broad

sense is that the training is available."

REPRESENTATIVE DOLL said she just received a note from a
constituent who is a menber of a sprinkler fitters' wunion and
"thinks this is diluting it." She asked if the sponsor has
spoken with nenbers of the union and whether "this is going to
be a potential problem"”

9:37: 58 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON replied that he thinks the concern is that
the anmendment woul d sonehow affect comrercial sprinkler system
installation. He enphasized that it woul d not.

9:38: 37 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he thinks the |anguage clearly
specifies that the sprinklers affected are residential
sprinkl ers.

9:39: 00 AM

REPRESENTATI VE DOLL withdrew her objection. There being no
further objection, Conceptual Anmendnent 1 was adopt ed.

9:39:13 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -21- March 6, 2008



REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN noved to report HCR 20, as anended, out
of comittee W th i ndi vi dual recommendat i ons and t he
acconpanying fiscal notes. There being no objection, CSHCR
20(STA) was reported out of the House State Affairs Standing
Comm ttee.

HB 406- COVPETI Tl VE BI DDI NG FOR BALLOTI PREP

9:39: 51 AM

VI CE CHAI R ROSES announced that the final order of business was
HOUSE BILL NO 406, "An Act relating to a requirenent for
conpetitive bidding on contracts for the preparation of election
ballots."

9:40: 08 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON noved to adopt the proposed comittee
substitute (CS) for HB 406, Version 25-1LS1487\C, Bullard,
2/ 28/ 08, as a work draft. There being no objection, Version C
was before the conmttee.

9:40: 34 AM

RENEE LIMOCE, Staff, Representative Anna Fairclough, Al aska
State Legislature, introduced HB 406 on behal f of Representative

Fai rcl ough, prine sponsor. She said the intent of the bill is
to open the conpetitive bidding process and to allow for fair
busi ness practices in Al aska. The bill includes an Al aska
bi dder and product preference and woul d not subject the D vision
of Elections to the procurenent code. Furthernore, Ms. Linoge
said, the intent is not to affect the integrity of the ballots
printed or Alaska's election process. Currently, there is a
sole source contract for the printing of election ballots, and
the bill sponsor would |ike to open up that process to allow

ot her Al aska printers the opportunity to apply for the business.
9:41: 44 AM

M5. LIMOGE, in response to a question from Representative Dol l
said currently there is one vendor that is certified. However
she offered her understanding that the certification process is
no longer [required], so other printers would be able to apply.
Wen the certification process did exist, the cost was
prohi bitive. She added, "And when it was a closed process,
there wasn't nmuch need to do that."

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -22- March 6, 2008



9:42: 26 AM

KERRY NOBLIN, Peninsula Printing, testified in support of HB
406, as follows:

Currently the Division of Elections is contracting
this work through one shop wthout giving other
qualified printing contractors the chance to bid on
the job. | can wunderstand that the Division of
El ections has beconme conplacent and confortable wth
their current arrangenment and their sole printing
contractor, but the efforts that go into printing
t hese bal | ot s are nei t her a t echni cal nor
extraordinary effort. The printing of state election
specific ballots is a rather sinple job when it cones
dowmn to the process of conpleting it. The | argest
challenge that face[s] any shop conpeting for the
contract is the sheer volume of that ballot, but there
are many printing contractors in Alaska that are
capabl e of handling these quantities.

Wthout putting these ballots out for bid, the state
is leaving itself to the mercy of one contractor,
allowing this contractor to dictate ternms to the state
with regards to [the] prici ng, quality, [ and]
turnaround of this job. It is a bad policy to uphold
and it also stifles a strong, conpetitive atnosphere.
Wth state election ballots being put up for bid anong

qualified Al askan printers, not only will the state be
stimulating positive economic growh in the Al aska
printing industry, but it wll also ensure that the

state is getting the best deal possible in terns of
price, quality, and turnaround.

The public bid process of the contracting of other
el ection ballots has been successful in the past, and
continues to be a success on a nunicipality and
bor ough | evel .

In closing, it is ny belief that the state should

support this bill. The bill not only ensures the
state is getting the best deal possible, it will help
stinulate economic growh in the |[ocal printing
i ndustry.

9:44: 37 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 23- March 6, 2008



REPRESENTATI VE DOLL asked M. Noblin why he thinks the use of
one printing conpany puts the state in a position of having to
"obey this vendor."

MR. NOBLIN answered that because the state is not giving other
vendors the opportunity to bid on projects, there is no way of
knowi ng whether the single vendor being used is charging fair
prices; there is no neans of conpari son.

9:46: 04 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG directed attention to a letter in the
commttee packet, from Kevin Fraley, the general manager of
Super Software Inc. "DBA - Print Wrks," dated March 12, 2008.
He said he would like to know how M. Noblin would respond to
the information in M. Fraley's letter.

9:47:36 AM

PATRICK FOSTER, A. T. Publishing and Printing, testified in
support of HB 406. He said he has worked in the printing
industry in Alaska for nearly 30 years. He said the State of
Al aska used D ebold Election Systens' ("D ebold") electronic
ball ot readers for the purpose of tallying votes from statew de
el ections. Until recently, he noted, Diebold required printing
conpanies that print ballots wused in its machines to be
certified by the conpany. At the tinme that the State of Al aska
adopted the use of Diebold s ballot readers in the md-1990s, no
conpanies in Alaska were certified. Shortly after, a snall,
Al aska printing conpany was certified, and the Division of
El ections has "sole-sourced approximately $2 mllion to this

conpany since." He said that has been done despite the fact
that a nunber of Alaska printing conpanies have voiced a desire
to be included in the process. M. Foster said his conpany

became a certified Dy ebold printer in 2003; however, today,
Diebold no longer requires certification, which renbves an
expensive hurdle for many Al aska printing conpanies.

VR. FOSTER said he is aware that there is probably a certain
confort level that the division has working with a printer that
has proven to do a good job. He said he works to give his
clients that sanme confort, and recently has succeeded in
securing the ballot-printing contract for the Mnicipality of

Anchor age. He noted that Anchorage fornmerly sole sourced its
ballot printing out to another printer before mking the
decision to put the ballot printing out to bid. The rmuni ci pal

clerk, he said, was concerned about noving forward with a new

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 24- March 6, 2008



printer, but has since found that the change was not only
relatively easy, but also that the Gty of Anchorage has
benefitted by paying less for its ballots. He relayed that his
conpany has printed ballots for the Mnicipality of Anchorage
from 2005-2007, considered by Dy ebold to be anong "the nost

difficult ballots in the nation.” He said the nmunicipality has
put a new contract out for bid this year. M. Foster said, "I'm
certain that the ... Division of Elections wuld develop a fine

working relationship wth any printing conpany that would be
awar ded the contract."

MR. FOSTER said some nmight claim that the conplexity of the
State of Alaska ballots is reason enough to | eave things the way
they are, but he enphasized that nothing is further from the

truth. The task of printing a few hundred thousand ballots
woul d be daunting for some small shops, but those shops would
not bid on the project. There are many conpanies in the state

that are fully capable of handling the volunme of work in the
time required, including the packaging and shipping |ogistics,
he said. The ballots require careful i1nprinting and packagi ng,
but are otherw se easy to produce - nothing beyond the scope of
many jobs produced by dozens of Alaska printing conpanies each
year. He said another concern is that the Division of Elections
coul d be bogged down putting ballots out to bid every two years.
M. Foster recommended that each bid be awarded for one el ection
cycle, with "a performance option for a second."”

9:51: 00 AM

VR. FOSTER stated that opening the election ballot to
conpetitive bid would have a variety of positive effects,
including the likely savings of a substantial anpunt of noney.
The |evel playing field, he said, would open the door for nore
Al aska printing conpanies to be involved, which would in turn
gi ve those conpanies the opportunity to upgrade their facilities
and inprove their standing in both the industry and the state.
Furthernore, the state would not have to put all its eggs in one
basket by relying on a single printing conmpany.

9:52: 26 AM

GAIL FENUM Al, Director, Central Ofice, D vision of Elections,
Ofice of the Lieutenant Governor, explained how HB 406 would

i npact the division's business practices. Prior to 2002, the
di vision had ballots printed by a conpany other than the current
vendor - a conpany outside of Alaska. She said the division is

thankful to have its ballots printed inside the state now,

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 25- March 6, 2008



because doing so alleviated many of its concerns regarding
getting ballots delivered on tinme, as well as other issues.

M5. FENUM Al stated that ballots are the npbst inportant aspect
of conducting an election. The ballot printing process is
conplex and requires a vendor that needs to know the processes
of the division and its tinmelines in order for the job to be

done correctly. If ballots are printed incorrectly and not
received on tinme, the result could be a disenfranchisenent of
voters and an inpairnment of the division. Ms. Fenum a
enphasi zed the inportance of the report and of trust gained by
working with a vendor. She said the vendor needs to be wlling
to stick with the division in the instance where sonething may
go wrong. She offered an exanple when, in 2004, the court

required ballots to be reprinted due to an initiative ballot
| anguage summary, and the division's current vendor worked
around the clock and was able to get the ballots reprinted and
delivered on time, so that the general election was able to
proceed as it was supposed to according to statute.

M5. FENUM Al relayed that the division follows the conpetitive
bid process for everything else it is required to do, for
exanpl e, purchasing envelopes, tally books, and the official
el ecti on panphl et. She stated, "This is one area that we feel
is very, very difficult ...." She said she would give the
cormmittee a tinmeline of statutory requirenments that nake a
conpetitive bid process inpracti cal

9:55: 06 AM

M5. FENUM Al stated that the only conpetitive bid process she is
aware of is what is referenced in the procurenent code, which
she said she believes is a 21-day, conpetitive, sealed bid
process. She said there is sone tine allowed for a protest
peri od. She related that although she is not personally
famliar wth the procurenent code, Vern Jones, the state's
chief procurenment officer, was available to answer questions.
She conti nued:

The division has very tight statutory deadlines.
Moving to a conpetitive bid process raises concerns
that the required tinelines couldn't be net. There
are 22 days fromthe date the ballot is certified for
the primary election to the date the ballots need to
be issued in our offices.

9:56: 04 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 26- March 6, 2008



VICE CHAIR ROSES asked Ms. Fenumiai if she has observed a
significant difference between a ballot on the day it is
certified and the sane ball ot several weeks before that.

MS5. FENUM Al said she does not recall, but she offered to find
out and get back to the conmttee wth an answer. She
conti nued:

For the general election, the tineline gets even
tighter; there are 16 days from the date [on] which
the ballot is sent to the printer and the date [on]
which the ballots have to be back in the division's
offices ready for distribution. And a lot of that is
contingent on when the primary election is certified,
because obviously we can't send the ballot to the
printer until the primary is certified.

The division is also concerned that the |owest bidder
may not also be the best bidder. There is a lot that
goes on other than just putting a tenplate on a
printer and printing ballots out. The printer tests
ballots to make sure that the tiny marks and the fold
marks - the cut marks - are properly done. So, it is
nore than just a sinple copying job, for lack of a
better word. There's accountability involved. And
al so, at the sane tine, many counties throughout the
nation are printing ballots, and ballot printers need
to know ahead of time if they're going to need to
order ballot paper, because there are literally
thousands in the nation that will be printing ballots
for a general election in Novenber.

9:58:12 AM
M5. FENUMAI, in response to a series of questions from
Representative Doll, said to the best of her know edge there

have been no problens related to the present vendor and she does
not feel that the division has been dictated to by that vendor.
She said the division tells the printer what, how nuch, and when
it needs in ternms of ballots, and she said to the best of her
knowl edge the tinelines have always been net by the current
vendor . The division decided in 2002 to find out if there was
any printer in the state of Al aska that would be qualified to
print ballots. At that tinme, D ebold required ballot printers
to be certified, and Print Wrks in Honmer had gone through that
certification process. The division toured the plant, net the

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -27- March 6, 2008



owner, and felt confortable that the business understood and
could nmeet the division's needs, concerns, and deadli nes. She
concl uded, "Ever since then, things have been fine."

9:59: 54 AM

M5. FENUM Al expl ained that the length of the ballot can change,
but the width remains the sane. In response to a followup
guestions from Vice Chair Roses, she confirnmed that creasing and
folding issues can differ with the size of the page. At the

time the division wuld put out a bid spec for ballots, she
said, it "would not have a genuine, true idea if a ballot was
going to be an 8 1/2 by 11-inch ballot [or] an 8 1/2 by 14-inch
ball ot until much closer towards the election."

10: 00: 27 AM

VI CE CHAIR ROSES asked if the bidding process would prevent the
division from getting a "variegated bid" that would allow the
printing conpanies to submt a different bid for each of the
possi bl e ball ot sizes.

MS. FENUM Al deferred to M. Jones.

10: 02: 01 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON said he has spent sonme tine in the
printing business, and he suggested that it may be efficient for
i ndividual printers to "just buy the bigger paper” and cut it to
si ze.

10: 02: 30 AM

VERN JONES, Chief Procurenent Oficer, Central Ofice, Division
of General Services, Departnment of Administration, said during
the bidding process what needs to be known, regarding paper
used, is "the mx of how nuch of each size and what the price
woul d be" in order to cone up with an accurate total. He said,
"Representative Johnson's solution would probably be nmuch easier
to inplenment than sinply getting pages per different price,
because you wouldn't know what the mx would be to know who
woul d actually be cheaper until the last mnute, and that woul d
be too late.™

10: 03: 31 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 28- March 6, 2008



REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN asked, "Can you nake, basically, a deal
that for this election cycle this conpany's going to ... be the
printer, and then deal with the deadlines on it?"

MR JONES said he generally is an advocate of conpetition;
therefore "this" is a bit of a departure for him He expl ai ned:

It's not so nmuch the time built into the procurenent
code, because the procurenent code doesn't apply here,
but just practically how nuch tinme they have - given
the information they have when they have it - to get a
bid out, to get the product - the stock ship by the
vendor, | understand takes a couple of nonths, to get
the testing done - they have to have prelimnary bids
in and ... all the nmachines have to be tested on the

ball ots that conme back well before they're ready.
Gail nmentioned reprints, as well. There's shi ppi ng
time - once the printer has its job done, they have to
be shipped to all different areas of the state. So,
it'"s not so much the tine that the procurenent takes,
as ... the very restricted anmount of tine that the
di vi si on has once they know what needs to be printed.

And again, that's not any reflection on the
capabilities of the printers out there. | don't think
the division's nade the leap that the printer they're
using is the only one that can do the job; it's just
that the tinme involved to actually effect the
conpetition is very tight, and | would probably
venture to say that in sonme instances, in sone
el ection cycles, it's definitely not practical to take
that time to go out and get the conpetitive bidding
that's required.

Sonmething else I'd like to nention is that while the
bill doesn't subject the printing of the ballot to the
procurenent code, it's silent on a nunber of issues
that the procurenent code would probably be used to

step in and fill in the bl anks. For exanple, there's
no ... protest provisions in the bill, so we would
likely look to the protest provisions of the
procurenent code to fill in. Those ... entail giving

the vendor ten days after an award is made to protest.
And then there'd be the tine necessary to respond to
the protest.

10: 07: 02 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 29- March 6, 2008



MR. JONES said it is probably very inportant to have a confort
level with a printer. That doesn't necessarily nean there is
only one printer involved, but there are other factors to
consider. He opined that "if this were going to be conpeted,” a
request for proposals (RFP) would be what "you'd want," rather
than a bid process. He explained that with an RFP, the state
would be able to examine a printer's experience, history,
capability, physical plant, and perhaps financial credentials.

He stated, "This speaks against the bill, because an RFP is an
even |onger procurenent process than a bidding process.” He
conti nued:

If the bill sinply said we want to subject the

printing and ballots to the procurenent code, there
woul d be much nore flexibility there. The procurenent
code has any nunber of procurenent nethods avail able
and exceptions, like limted conpetition procurenents,
and so on. Now, |'m not suggesting that that be done,
I"'m just saying that there would be a lot nore
flexibility if that were the case.

10: 08: 20 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN asked if one conpany can be chosen for a
specific election rather than undergoing another bid or process
"every time you turn around.”

MR. JONES responded that it would be possible to do so; however,
the information that would be necessary in order to be able to
fairly evaluate "one versus the other" would depend on the
information that the division gets, and "it doesn't get it until

18 days before the ballots are needed to be in hand and
ready to be voted on."

10: 10: 19 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON asked if there is any |anguage in the
proposed legislation that would prevent the division from
issuing a conpetitive bid process, effective in 2010, which
would apply for the next five years, and repeat the process
every five years thereafter. He said he thinks it would be ill-
advised to try to put a bid out for every election, but supports

the idea of contracts every five to seven years. He stated
"Sixteen days in the printing world is a lifetine," thus, the
time frame does not concern him but quality control does. He

said he could nane a half dozen printers who could print ballots

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 30- March 6, 2008



for the state. He said he doesn't know if they could do it for
a better price than the printer the state currently uses, but he
doesn't think the division knows that answer either, which is
the purpose of [the bill]. He said the state could nake a test
run be a requirenent of the bid process.

MR. JONES said there is nothing in the |anguage of the bill that
woul d prevent that from happening. He suggested that "a bid may
not be the appropriate vehicle for printing a ballot in this
case. "

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON sai d perhaps the RFP process woul d apply.
He said there is a system by which the state could allow a
conpetitive process to "enter our election"” wthout jeopardizing
the quality of that election. He said he thinks the bill needs
to be considered nore closely. He said, "There is nothing that
should keep this from happening, and quite honestly, | don't
know why the Division of Elections hasn't done it anyway." He
said he thinks the state is probably spending nore than
necessary for its ballots.

10: 14: 18 AM

M5. FENUM Al responded that timng is an issue. She said there
are a lot of intricacies involved with printing ballots. A
significant anpbunt of testing is done at the printer's shop and
at the Division of Elections to ensure that the ballots record
votes properly in the optical scan units.

VICE CHAIR LYNN asked if Representative Johnson's suggestion of

a rotating bid would allow "time for that to take place and
still have a conpetitive process."

M5. FENUM Al replied that she believes it would be a better
process than getting bids every two years.

10: 15: 33 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN asked how often the layout and the face
of the ballots actually change.

MS. FENUM Al responded that the ballot would be on sane type of
paper each year; only the names and races would change, along
with the length of the ballot. In response to a followup
question from Representative Johansen, she said the placenent of
the names of candidates and the ovals that are placed next to
each name shift with each ball ot.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 31- March 6, 2008



REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN said he would like to know how nmuch the
cost of printing ballots has increased in the last six to eight
years.

M5. FENUM Al noted that, according to available records, the
2004 [primary] ballots totaled $156,229.25; general election
ballots for 2004 cost $264,546.28; and the reprinting of [the
general election] ballots for 2004 cost $235,802.87. The 2006
primary ballots cost $181,632.00; the 2006 general election
ballots cost $205, 773. 75. In response to Representative
Johnson, she explained that there had been a court order that
mandated the ballot sunmary | anguage be changed on one of the
initiatives, which required every single 2004 general election
ballot to be reprinted. The prices fluctuate because of
guantity, size of the ballot, and paper [length], she noted.

10: 18: 48 AM
M5. FENUM AI, in response to a question from Representative
Doll, offered nore details regarding the certification process

previously required by D ebold.

10:19: 50 AM

JASON HOOLEY, Special Assistant/Legislature, Ofice of the
Li eutenant Governor, testified regarding the practical aspects
of HB 406. He stated that the O fice of the Lieutenant Governor
supports conpetition; however, the flexibility afforded by
current statute has not led to a situation w thout standard or
| acki ng oversight. Conversely, that flexibility has allowed the
division to explore a nunber of areas that have led to quality
assurance and security neasures that have served the division
wel | . That said, he reported that the Ofice of the Lieutenant
Governor does not oppose bill, but asks that the conmttee
continue to work with the division to address the practical
concerns articulated by Ms. Fenum ai and M. Jones.

10: 21: 03 AM

VI CE CHAI R ROSES cl osed public testinmony, but said he nay reopen
testimony for M. Fraley if he is available to testify at the
next conmttee hearing on HB 406.

[ HB 406 was heard and hel d. ]

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 32- March 6, 2008



ADJ OURNVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House

State Affairs Standing Conmmttee neeting was adjourned at
10: 21: 40 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 33- March 6, 2008



